
 

 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, December 4th, 2017 

6:00 p.m. 

Hampden Town Office 

1. Meeting Minutes  

a. November 6, 2017 

b. November 20, 2017 

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants 

 

3. Old Business  

a. Meeting with Auditor regarding process to complete transition from 
the enterprise method of accounting to revenue and expense method 
of accounting in the recreation and pool departments through transfer 
of funds from clearing accounts to reserve accounts 
 

4. New Business 
a. Recommend Council authorization for the transfer of $224,665.43, 

plus any amount added as a result of close-out of the FY17 Audit, 
from Recreation Clearing Account (1-199-01) to Recreation Area 
Reserve (3-767-00) 

b. Recommend Council authorization for the transfer of $58,452.92, 
plus any amount added as a result of close-out of the FY17 Audit, 
from Pool Clearing Account (1-111-05) to Pool Facility Reserve (3-
771-00) 

c. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an amount 
up to $2,592.00 from the Personnel Reserve Account (3-733-00) for 
the purpose of offsetting costs associated with payroll expenses for a 
temporary part-time worker 

d. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of $2,542.04 
from the Municipal Building Reserve Account (3-702-00) for repairs to 
HVAC at Town Office 

e. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of $1,300 from 
the Municipal Building Reserve Account (3-702-00) for repairs to the 
leaking roof at Town Office 

f. Update on RSU-22 proposed February 2018 Referendum regarding 
replacement of artificial turf field at Hampden Academy  

g. Informational update from Special Counsel Kate Grossman, Esq., of 
Farrell, Rosenblatt & Russell regarding litigation with Acadia Hospital 
Corp. regarding applicability of Service Charge Ordinance 
 

5. Public Comment 
 



 

 

6. Committee Member Comments 
 

7. Adjournment 



FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, November 6th, 2017 

MINUTES – DRAFT   

Hampden Town Office 

Attending:  
Councilor Greg Sirois, Chair   Councilor Dennis Marble  

 Mayor David Ryder     Town Manager Angus Jennings 
Councilor Ivan McPike    Assessor Kelly Karter 
Councilor Stephen Wilde    Rec Directory Shelley Abbott 

 Councilor Mark Cormier    Resident Allison Berube  
 Councilor Terry McAvoy    About 4 residents 
  
Chairman Sirois called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

1. Meeting Minutes  

 

a. October 16th, 2017 – Motion by Councilor Marble seconded by 

Councilor McAvoy to approve the minutes as written. Passed 6-0. 

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Warrants were reviewed and signed. 

 

3. Old Business  

 

4. New Business 
 

a. Consideration of a recommendation to Council to exercise the 
Put Option for the sale of PERC ownership interests – Manager 
Jennings provided background based on the materials in the packet. 
Motion by Councilor Marble seconded by Councilor McAvoy to 
recommend that the Council exercise the Town of Hampden Put 
Option for the sale of its ownership interests in PERC. Motion passed 
6-0.  
 

b. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $6,720 from the Economic Development Reserve 
Account (3-727-00) for the purpose of purchasing town center 
flags – referral from Infrastructure Committee – Mayor Ryder 
summarized the recommendation in favor of this funding from the 
Infrastructure Committee, noting that the estimated cost to repair the 
electrical fixtures to allow safe installation of holiday lighting on the 
poles would be very costly. Manager Jennings clarified that the 
amount of requested authorization is $8,280 which includes the 
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amount added to the reserve account in the FY18 budget plus the 
previous balance in that account. There was a motion by Councilor 
McPike seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council 
authorization of $8,280 from the Economic Development Reserve 
Account for the purpose of purchasing town center flags. Motion 
passed 6-0. 

 

c. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $6,800 from the Roads/Streets Reserve Account 
(3-761-00) for the purpose of town center sidewalk/crosswalk 
engineering – Manager Jennings summarized the materials in the 
meeting packet. Mayor Ryder expressed support to add two 
crosswalks in the Town Center (at Cottage Street and at the Kiwanis 
driveway) but said that MaineDOT doesn’t require engineered plans, 
and that he does not support the funding request. He said he 
recommends that we get construction quotes and put the funds 
toward constructing the crosswalks. There was discussion among the 
Councilors and Manager regarding whether engineered plans would 
be needed. Resident Allison Berube said that if the contract is written 
correctly that the contractor would absorb the responsibility to ensure 
ADA compliance. Mayor Ryder said it’s all spelled out in the MDOT 
specs. There was a motion by Councilor Marble seconded by 
Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council authorization of the 
requested funding. The motion failed 0-6.  

 

d. Recommend Council authorization for contract extension with 
Woodard & Curran for the design for parking and permitting on 
the Lura Hoit Pool Site – Manager Jennings summarized the cost 
proposal received from Woodard & Curran to bring the parking lot 
and stormwater features through the DEP and site plan approval 
processes. This had been requested by the Services Committee at 
its October meeting. He said the existing contract with W&C provides 
that the contract can be extended, but also provides the Town the 
option to re-bid services. The Services Committee had indicated that 
they intended to stay with W&C, but at that time had not received the 
cost proposal. Manager Jennings said he thinks the cost proposal is 
somewhat higher that people expected, but his discussions with Jim 
Wilson provided context for the cost, as Woodard & Curran has not 
taken a project through the Site Location of Development permit 
process for less than mid $60,000 range. Mr. Wilson had described 
to Manager Jennings that the cost drivers included the overall site 
stormwater design, and taking into account potential future use of the 
site. The depth of the current pipeline crossing the site is an 
important control point, and if there were fields above the pipeline in 
the future this would affect elevations, grading, and stormwater 
management design throughout the site. Although a future field is not 



part of what is presently being proposed, Mr. Wilson told Manager 
Jennings it was his recommendation that this approach would best 
preserve the Town’s future options for the site and would best 
advance the initial Town direction within this process which was to 
design things with the long-term in mind so that piping and 
stormwater structures would not need to be torn up and redone in the 
future. Manager Jennings said that the proposed fee of $51,000 was 
a lot of money, no question about it. 
 
Chairman Sirois asked for clarification as to the current agenda item. 
Manager Jennings said the current item is to consider authorizing an 
extension of the contract, and the next agenda item relates to the 
authorization of reserve funding based on the cost proposal. 
 
Councilor McAvoy expressed confusion about whether the proposal 
takes into account the pipeline. Manager Jennings said that it does 
take into account the pipeline, so that this would be taken into 
account if additional development occurred on the site in the future. 
Manager Jennings said that if the parking is the last thing the Town 
ever does on the site, that the engineering costs could be lower. 
 
Councilor McAvoy said that fields have nothing to do with impervious 
surface or stormwater runoff. Manager Jennings said that fields do 
have different stormwater runoff patterns than wooded area. He 
acknowledged that fields are not impervious surface, but that their 
location and elevation would affect runoff patterns. Paved area to 
serve the fields would also be a factor. 
 
Councilor McPike said he also feels lost and is trying to get his arms 
around it. He said he’s looking for a cost figure. He asked will it cost 
$51,000 to tell us what it will cost us? Manager Jennings said no, that 
is the cost to get it through DEP permitting and local Site Plan 
Review, which would take the design work to date to an engineering 
level, which would refine the construction cost estimates. The 
estimated construction cost estimates already provided by Woodard 
& Curran are the best available information, but would be more 
refined and more accurate based on additional detailed engineering. 
 
Councilor Marble said we need engineered plans in order to get DEP 
permitting. He asked, if the Town were to switch vendors, what might 
be lost and if this is a concern? Manager Jennings said that the 
contract provides that the work products created to date belong to the 
Town and are not proprietary, so could be transferred to another 
vendor. He said that, if the Council didn’t change the conceptual plan 
W&C prepared, he didn’t think it would be a significant cost impact, 



but would impact staff time in terms of scoping and bidding out the 
next phase of work.  
 
Chairman Sirois said that in order to move the process forward we 
need to either proceed with Woodard & Curran or seek another 
vendor. Manager Jennings said yes, a professional engineer will 
need to create and stamp the plans.  
 
Councilor McPike said if we don’t want to spend that amount of 
money, this whole thing stops? Manager Jennings said that we would 
need to figure out if there is another way forward and said he’s open 
to suggestions. He said Mr. Wilson had represented to him that the 
cost proposal he provided was, in his opinion, realistic.  
 
Mayor Ryder said if we cut our losses with Woodard & Curran we 
could bring them back at a later date. He said he plans to vote no. 
 
Councilor McAvoy was surprised that the potential future fields was 
part of Mr. Wilson’s thinking since he thought it was made very clear 
at the Services Committee meeting that the scope was only for the 
parking and stormwater. Manager Jennings said Mr. Wilson 
understands the direction is just the parking, but that his 
understanding of the Town’s objectives is that whatever is done 
would not need to be torn up and redone in the future if a future 
Council wanted to do more on the site. Manager Jennings 
acknowledged to Councilor McAvoy that Mr. Wilson may be looking 
at this in a way that he as a Councilor may think is outside the scope 
but that Mr. Wilson is trying to be responsive to the objective in the 
initial scope. Manager Jennings said that whether Mr. Wilson got that 
right is subject to debate.  
 
Councilor McAvoy said that, at the public meetings, he didn’t hear 
more people supporting fields than those not supporting the work. 
Councilor McPike said he thought they would be given two costs, one 
for the parking and stormwater and another to also do fields, and that 
he now sees it will cost $51,000 to get that information. Mayor Ryder 
said no, we wouldn’t even get that, the scope now is limited to just 
parking and stormwater. Manager Jennings confirmed that is correct, 
the cost would include engineering the parking and stormwater, 
including stormwater management for current uses on site 
constructed since 1973, and would take that through DEP and local 
permitting. Manager Jennings referred to language in the proposal 
that says “if during DEP kickoff or design we identify environmental 
impacts not currently anticipated, or if DEP asks that the Post Office 
site be reviewed, we will meet with you to refine our approach 
including fee impacts.”  Manager Jennings said he didn’t initially 



understand the language and saw it as a risk factor so had followed 
up with Mr. Wilson, and Mr. Wilson clarified that the Moyse 
Environmental review was focused on undeveloped areas of the site 
that may be developable. For example, Moyse did not flag wetlands 
on the east side of the Town Office. The W&C proposal was clarifying 
that, if DEP asked for additional review of environmental areas such 
as those, this would add cost and would add permitting time. Certain 
types of analysis, such as vernal pools, can only be done during a 
certain time of year, and this could result in delays that could affect 
the potential to be in a position to construct parking prior to the fall 
2018 season. He said Mr. Wilson did not expect this, but that it was 
important that the Town understand this could happen. Manager 
Jennings described that potential – for DEP to require additional 
wetlands delineation, for example – as the biggest risk factor he sees 
to the overall project timeline. Other than that, the timeline will 
depend on when we get someone under contract for the next phase 
of engineering and permitting. 
 
Chairman Sirois called for any further discussion or public comment. 
 
Resident Allison Berube complimented the Committee on their critical 
thinking. She appreciates the work that has been done. She said the 
cost per parking spot was extremely high. After the $51,000, then we 
have to construct the stormwater, all before we can add a single 
parking spot. She supports voting this down tonight, to look at other 
options. She would support the Town looking into buying the 25 acre 
parcel across from her house on Main Road North as a better option 
for fields. She also said people could park at the Town Office and 
walk to the Pool site fields. She thanked the Councilors for their hard 
work. 
 
Motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Councilor Marble to 
recommend Council authorization to extend the contract with 
Woodard & Curran for engineering and permitting at the Lura Hoit 
Pool site. Motion failed 0-6. 

 

e. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $51,000 from the Rec Area Reserve Account (3-
767-00) for the purpose of contract extension with Woodard & 
Curran for engineering services for parking and permitting on 
the Lura Hoit Pool Site – There was a motion by Councilor McPike 
seconded by Councilor Marble to recommend the requested funding. 
The motion failed 0-6. Manager Jennings asked that the Committee 
provide some direction as to whether this matter would next be 
considered at the November Services Committee meeting. Mayor 
Ryder said that would be too soon and it was agreed this would be 



considered again at the December meeting of the Services 
Committee. Councilor Marble said that we had contracted with 
Woodard & Curran because they’re more knowledgeable than the 
Town regarding the DEP permitting process, and he said he doesn’t 
want to lose the value of the work that has been done and would like 
to build on that work. Mayor Ryder said we’re not mothballing 
anything, but we want to see if there’s a better way to move forward. 

 

f. Referral to Council for referral to Public Hearing, a proposed 
Zoning Map Amendment to reflect the proposed rezoning of a 
portion of parcel 33-0-11-A located at the intersection of US 
Route 202 and Coldbrook Road, from Residential A District to 
Commercial Services District – referral from Planning & 
Development Committee – Councilor McPike, Chairman of the P&D 
Committee, said that the Committee is supportive of the proposed 
rezoning. Motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Councilor Marble 
to refer to Council for referral to public hearing proposed zoning 
amendments related to recreational marijuana. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

g. Referral to Council for referral to Public Hearing, a proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment to define Retail Marijuana, Retail 
Marijuana Store, Retail Marijuana Social Clubs, Drug Store or 
Pharmacy and to amend existing Definitions relative to Retail 
Marijuana and related uses, with the intent to prohibit Retail 
Marijuana Stores and Retail Marijuana Social Clubs in the Town 
of Hampden – referral from Planning & Development Committee 
– Motion by Councilor McPike seconded by Councilor Marble to refer 
to Council for referral to public hearing proposed zoning amendments 
related to recreational marijuana. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

h. Request for a tax abatement for property located at 501 Western 
Avenue for FY 14-15, FY 15-16 and FY 16-17 – Assessor Karter 
summarized the materials in the meeting packet. Motion by Councilor 
Marble seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council 
approval of the requested tax abatements for the years noted and in 
the amounts recommended by the Assessor. Motion passed 6-0.  
 

5. Public Comment – None.  
 

6. Committee Member Comments – None. 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:51 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted – Angus Jennings, Town Manager 



 

 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, November 20th, 2017 

MINUTES – DRAFT   

Hampden Town Office 

Attending:  
Councilor Greg Sirois, Chair  Councilor Mark Cormier  

 Mayor David Ryder    Councilor Dennis Marble 
Councilor Terry McAvoy   Councilor Ivan McPike 

 Councilor Stephen Wilde   Town Manager Angus Jennings  
       Town Clerk Paula Scott 
 
Chairman Sirois called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

1. Meeting Minutes – None.  

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Warrants were reviewed and signed. 

 

3. Old Business  

 

4. New Business 
 

a. Auditor’s letter regarding completing the process to move from 
the method of enterprise accounting to revenue and expense 
accounting in the recreation and pool departments – Manager 
Jennings summarized the Auditor’s memo in the packet, noting that 
the recommended transfer of funds was part of completing the 
transfer away from enterprise budgeting. He said he is not seeking a 
Council vote tonight but that this item will be placed on the next 
agenda for action. Councilor Marble said that it sounds pretty 
straightforward. Manager Jennings said that his understanding is that 
the Council’s policy intent in establishing enterprise budgeting in the 
first place was to make funds above expenses available for 
recreation and pool uses. Councilor McAvoy asked whether the funds 
could simply be put into the General Fund instead of reserve and 
Manager Jennings said that the Council has the authority to put the 
funds into the General Fund. Manager Jennings noted that a 
representative from the Auditor’s firm would be present at the next 
meeting to answer questions. 
 

b. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 
amount up to $6,300 from the Roads/Streets Reserve Account 
(3-761-00) for town center crosswalk engineering – referral from 
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Services Committee – There was a motion by Councilor Marble 
seconded by Councilor McAvoy to recommend Council authorization 
for the expenditure of an amount up to $6,300 from the 
Roads/Streets Reserve Account for town center crosswalk 
engineering. Motion passed 6-1 with Mayor Ryder in opposition. 
 

c. Town Manager’s Financial Summary Report – Manager Jennings 
said that the report in the packet demonstrates month-end bank 
balances over the past couple of years and shows a generally 
positive trend. He said he is continuing to work on a format for 
periodic reporting to the Finance Committee and that this will be part 
of it. He noted that the bank balances do not reflect a true picture of 
financial resources because they do not factor in funds that are there 
because of interfund transfers, TANs, etc., but that he has a different 
report that he updates regularly that does include this information. 
This item was informational and no action was taken. 

 

5. Public Comment – None.  
 

6. Committee Member Comments – None. 
 

7. Adjournment 
 
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:42 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted –   
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 



  
TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  November 30, 2017 

RE:  Transition from Enterprise to Revenue/Expense Budgeting 
 

 

Please find enclosed the memo from the Auditor reviewed at the previous Finance 
Committee meeting. 
 

Background: A review of Town financial records shows that the policy intent of 
“enterprise” budgeting was to provide a non-taxation revenue source for Recreation 
and Pool reserve needs instead of budgeting taxation funds into those reserve 
accounts. As a result, these are reported as “committed” funds in Town Audits. 
 

“Enterprise” budgeting for Recreation began in the 1990s.  A review of archived 
accounting filed dating back to FY05 shows that no budgeted funds were put toward 
Recreation Reserve over that period of time (although $10,000 was budgeted toward 
the Playground Reserve in both FY05 and FY07, totaling $20,000). 
 

In FY17, $80,000 was placed in the Recreation Reserve to fund the ongoing work 
related to the Pool/Town Building site. An additional $10,000 was budgeted toward 
this account, for these, purposes, in the FY18 Budget. These were the first budgeted 
funds added to the Recreation Reserve account since FY05, at least.  (Access to 
pre-FY05 TRIO accounting records is not readily available).  
 

“Enterprise” budgeting for Pool began in 2013.  A review of adopted Town Budgets 
shows that, from FY05 through FY12, the Town’s operating budget committed $10-
15,000 per fiscal year to the Pool Reserve account (a total of $110,000 over that 
time). No funds were budgeted toward Pool Reserve in FY13 through FY16. In FY17 
and FY18, $5,000 each year was placed in Pool Reserve toward the cost of 
repainting the pool interior.  

 

Town budgeting over the period of time that “enterprise” budgeting was used supports 
other references (i.e. Town Manager memos, meeting minutes) that the “enterprise” 
method was intended instead of budgeting reserve funds. Funds budgeted toward Rec 
and Pool Reserves in FY17 and FY18 were toward specific initiatives (Pool site) and 
repairs (Pool painting), and do not begin to cover known and anticipated costs of future 
investments toward Rec and Pool facilities (as set out in the Capital Program). 
 

In order to put the Town in a better position to absorb these future costs, and to 
maintain previous policy, and public commitments, regarding the use of Rec and Pool 
program proceeds, I recommend authorizing the transfers included on the agenda (from 
Rec Clearing to Rec Reserve, and from Pool Clearing to Pool Reserve). FY17 numbers 
will not be final until the Audit is complete. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 
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Town Budgeted Funds toward certain Reserve accounts, FY02‐FY18

Acct Reserve Account
FY02 
Budget

FY03 
Budget

FY04 
Budget

FY05 
Budget

FY06 
Budget

FY07 
Budget

FY08 
Budget

FY09 
Budget

FY10 
Budget

FY11 
Budget

FY12 
Budget

FY13 
Budget

FY14 
Budget

FY15 
Budget

FY16 
Budget

FY17 
Budget

FY18 
Budget

3‐767‐00 Rec Area Res ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            80,000$     10,000$    
3‐768‐00 Playground ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            10,000$     ‐$            10,000$     ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            5,000$       
3‐769‐00 Rec/Conserv ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$           
3‐771‐00 Pool Facility ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            10,000$     10,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     15,000$     ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            ‐$            5,000$        5,000$       

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager, 11/30/17



TO:  Services Committee 
FROM: Sue Lessard, Town Manager 
DATE:  June 4, 2015 
RE:  Enterprise Accounts 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide information requested by Councilor McAvoy in 
regard to the Recreation Enterprise Account. He asked for information related to when 
the Recreation Enterprise Account was established, by whom, and under what 
authority. Since the Recreation Enterprise account pre-dates me, I reached out to 
former Town Manager Marie Baker. She indicated that the Enterprise account was 
established as part of the budget process sometime in the mid 1990’s when the 
Recreation Committee recommended that there be a full-time recreation director for the 
town.  
 
I went back to Council minutes for the period from 1990 forward and found that the 
Enterprise Account was first listed as a separate account as part of the 1997 budget.  
The minutes from that time period do not do it in the form of any type of motion – it just 
separates the fee-based programming into a different account that would not lapse. I 
have attached minutes from 1996 and 1997 that discuss recreation expansion and a 
fund in which income would cover the expenses associated with personnel. I do not 
have any other documentation and from discussions with the former Manager, I do not 
think any exists.  
 
When the Skehan Center was acquired as a lease by the Town and turned over to the 
Recreation department to run – the department was also tasked with covering all of the 
costs of it through generation of revenue by the facility and coverage of any deficit by 
funds that are generated through the Recreation enterprise account.  At first all were 
maintained together, but there was a desire on the part of the Council to be able to see 
what the Skehan Center actually cost to operate and how many actual programs were 
run from that facility.  If there is some other way that the Council wishes this information 
to be presented, I am happy to set that up so that you have it.  
 
The Council did approximately the same thing in 2013 when, as part of the budget 
process it separated pool income and all of the pool operational costs except 
wages/benefits into an enterprise account designed to function in the same way that the 
Recreation Enterprise account functions. 
 
The main reason for the establishment of these accounts is so that any funds generated 
solely by one activity – recreation, or the pool – over above the costs of operating the 
programs - can be carried forward for use in replacement of capital items (tennis court 
improvements, major repair at the Skehan Center, etc. on the Recreation side and 
major pool repairs, on the pool side.   
 
I have attached a sheet that shows the total budgets for the pool, recreation, the 
Skehan Center, and Rec Enterprise along with their funding sources. I hope that this is 
helpful. 
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TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  November 29, 2017 

RE:  Request for authorization of expenditures from Personnel Reserve  
 

 

This is a follow-up to my previous memo of April 26, which was taken up by the Finance 
Committee and Council at your May 1 meetings. 
 
A Town employee received a medical diagnosis last spring that required some amount 
of time away from work for testing and treatment, and which will continue some 
additional time off. Time off has been provided, and will continue to be provided, in 
accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act.  
 
On May 1, the Council authorized funding from the Personnel Reserve fund to cover the 
cost of a temporary part-time worker in order to ensure staff coverage of key functions 
of this position during the remainder of FY17.  
 
This memo is a request for Council authorization of an additional $2,592.00 from the 
Personnel Reserve in order to offset the costs of this part-time coverage for FY18. This 
amount will cover hourly wages and required FICA/Medicare contribution for 144 hours 
during this period. Depending on the FMLA employee’s status, an additional 
authorization may be requested in the future. 
 
The current account balance in the Personnel Reserve is approximately $35,621 which 
includes the $25,000 added to this account as budgeted in FY18. The requested 
allocation will ensure continuity of operations while preventing the department’s wage 
expense account from being overspent in FY18.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 
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TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

106 WESTERN AVE. 

HAMPDEN, ME 04444 

TEL 862-3337                                  FAX   862-5067 

 
November 29, 2017 
                                                                                  

To: Angus Jennings 
From: Sean Currier 
Subject: Municipal Building Reserve Fund Request  

 
 

 The Public Works Department is requesting approval to use Municipal Building Reserve funds 
(03-702-00) in the amount of $198.00 to pay for the repair of the hot water heater at the Town 
Office. Penobscot Temperature Controls performed the repair in November which was an 
unexpected and unbudgeted expense as with the following requests. 

 
 We are also requesting Municipal Building Reserve funds (03-702-00) in the amount of $323.04 

for a repair / service call performed by Penobscot Temperature Controls to rectify the 
temperature in the Council Chambers. The air dryer for the pneumatic lines is not properly 
functioning and is need of replacement. It was temporarily repaired to get the temperature to a 
reasonable level. 

 
 The third request is in the amount of $243.00 for a weekend service call to Penobscot 

Temperature Controls. Apparently the heat in the entire building stopped functioning and Public 
Safety called PTC. After they were on site, the figured out that the computer controlling the 
system stopped communicating with the control module and simply needed to be rebooted. PTC 
thought that the interruption had been synonymous with the recent power outage fluctuations. 

 
 The fourth request for Municipal Building Reserve funds (03-702-00) are in the amount of $78.00 

for a repair / service call performed by Penobscot Temperature Controls to rectify the 
temperature in the Council Chambers again. The air dryer for the pneumatic lines malfunctioned 
again. 

 
 The last request is in the amount of up to $1,700.00 for Penobscot Temperature Controls to 

repair/replace the pneumatic air system dryer. This is original building equipment that dries the 
air system that runs the zone valves controlled from the control module. The equipment is 
breaking down internally and routinely gets plugged which will result in more frequent service 
calls.  

 
 The total request for reserve funds from the Municipal Reserve account are in the amount of 

$2,542.04 
 
 Thank you for your consideration. 

  
 Sean Currier 
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TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

106 WESTERN AVE. 

HAMPDEN, ME 04444 

TEL 862-3337                                  FAX   862-5067 

 
November 30, 2017 
                                                                                  

To: Angus Jennings 
From: Sean Currier 
Subject: Municipal Building Reserve Fund Request  

 
 

 The Public Works Department is requesting approval to use Municipal Building Reserve funds 
(03-702-00) in the amount of $1,300.00 to pay for the repair of the leaking Town Office roof.  The 
existing flat portion of the roof surrounding the skylight was degraded and ripped rubber roofing. 
The repair was necessary due to the leaking roof damaging the interior building gypsum ceiling.  

 Silicone roofing was applied by Gates Construction. This repair was unbudgeted and 
unexpected hence the reserve request. 

 
 
 
 Thank you for your consideration. 

  
 Sean Currier 
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TO:  Finance Committee 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  November 30, 2017 

RE:  Proposed February 2018 Referendum re RSU-22 Turf Field Replacement 
 

 

Earlier today I attended a meeting, along with representatives from other RSU-22 
towns, regarding the proposed replacement of the turf field at Hampden Academy. 
 
The current field is 14 years old, and is past its estimated useful life of 8-10 years. 
Safety concerns have arisen due to gradual loss of infill due to use and weather, 
compaction of the infill that remains, and breakdown of synthetic fibers resulting in less 
resiliency. RSU-22 will hold a public forum to discuss this initiative on Monday, 
December 4 at 6:30 PM in the Hampden Academy Performing Arts Center. 
 
The estimated project budget of $935,000 would include replacement of the turf field 
(but not the drainage, which is in place and functioning well), and new LED lighting. 
RSU-22 proposes to seek voter authorization to borrow up to $750,000 and expects to 
pay $110,000 out of their field reserve, with the balance to be made up by private 
donations including field sponsorships. 
 
In order to meet the timeline to borrow through the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, RSU-
22 proposes to hold a referendum in February 2018. The anticipated timeline is 
enclosed, and the Town Clerk will work with RSU-22 to ensure that all required steps 
can be timely followed. I have also enclosed an illustrative amortization schedule; 
obviously, specific borrowing terms would not be known for some time. 
 
This item is included as an informational update to the Committee. RSU-22 
representatives would be pleased to respond to any questions or concerns you may 
have, and have offered to appear at a future meeting or meetings if so requested. 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 
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TOWN OF HAMPDEN

BOARD OF ASSESSMENT REVIEW

PUBLIC HEARING

IN RE: Acadia Hospital Corporation

Appeal of Service Charge Ordinance

October 24, 2017

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD:

Lowell Theodore Sherwood, Chair
Aimee Smith, Board Member
Avery Caldwell, Board Member
Kelly Karter, Assessor Town of Hampden
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A P P E A R A N C E S

For the Town of Hampden:

KATE GROSSMAN, Esq.

For Acadia Hospital Corporation:

ARRIAN STOCKDELL, Esq.
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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

* * * * * *

MS. GROSSMAN: Arrian is welcome to chime

in with his take on things, but I think that

you can open it. You can go back to square

one and open it up for additional -- you can

leave what's already on the record there and

open it up for additional evidence, and we're

prepared for that.

The Town's position is you could -- you

could go back and say our deliberations -- the

record was sufficient, our deliberations were

sufficient, and we really just didn't get it

across sufficiently for the Court in our

written decision. And so we will go back to

that and write something new that is supported

by what's been done. You can also go back to

your deliberations and discuss the record that

has been created up to this point and create a

new order based on that, or you can reopen it

up.

Like I said, the Town's position is that

the record is sufficient and there were maybe

just some ways that the dots could have been

connected to make the written findings and
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conclusions sufficient for the Court to

review. So I prepared a proposed findings and

conclusions (inaudible) or quasi judicial body

such as yourselves saying this what we think

is supported by the record. This is how we

would articulate it. And you can take from

that what you will.

So that's our position, but if the Board

feels that you'd like to open it up and add to

the record because you'd like to see more, we

are happy to go that route as well.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Mr. Stockdell.

MR. STOCKDELL: Well, the first thing I

want to do is I want to make sure that the

recording is -- are we recording right now?

MS. KARTER: We are recording right now.

MR. STOCKDELL: Okay. Because that was

part of the problem in the past.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Well, if -- I didn't

realize we were on the record. If we're on

the record, then we've got to start off.

MS. SMITH: Yep. Mine's on, and, Avery,

you can turn it on.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: If I can interrupt --

MR. STOCKDELL: Please, if you want to
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open the record.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: I do. This is a meeting

of the Hampden Board of Assessment Review.

The time is 3:30 p.m., October 24th, 2017. My

name is Ted Sherwood, and I'll be chairing

this hearing. The other board members are

Aimee Smith and Avery Caldwell.

We are here to address a matter, an

appeal by Acadia Hospital Corporation of a

service charge imposed on a property at

25 Mayo Road in Hampden. This is a rehearing

of the matter as remanded by Justice William

Anderson by order dated August 12, 2017.

Acadia Hospital is represented by

Attorney Arrian Stockdell, and the Town of

Hampden is represented by Kate Grossman.

Now we're doing some housekeeping items

in terms of how we are about to proceed.

Mr. Stockdell.

MR. STOCKDELL: Thank you. Well, just

before you formally opened the record, there

were some -- Ms. Grossman made some comments

that I just don't have any problem with those

being incorporated in to the formal record. I

think that probably goes without saying, but I



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

6

just want to say that I don't have any problem

with that. So we don't have to rehash it.

From our perspective, we do agree that

what is open to the Board to decide to do

today and in general at this juncture is quite

permissive. It's open. There -- the -- the

demonstrative -- the language used in the

remand order was the Court may -- and the

actions the Court may take, that this board

may take may include certain things that the

Court suggested. But what I really want to

point the Board's attention to is the statute

that Justice Anderson cited, which is

Title 30-A, Section 2691, which requires --

which states that all decisions of the Board

must become a part of the record and must

include a statement of findings and

conclusions as well as the reasons or basis

for the findings and conclusions upon all the

materials, issues of fact, law, or discretion

presented in the appropriate order, relief, or

denial of relief.

And it is therefor possible that Justice

Anderson was looking for more complete facts

in the record, which were not supplied because
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we didn't have a recording of the proceedings.

That's one possibility, and it's also possible

that he could not ascertain what exactly the

reasons or basis for the findings and

conclusions were or perhaps what the findings

and conclusions themselves actually were.

So with that in mind, I think the Board

does have the discretion to kind of proceed to

revise its decision and just submit a revised

order that addresses those requirements of the

statute in more detail. And that's certainly

appropriate. Of course, Justice Anderson

might still find that he has no way to

determine whether or not those findings are

supported by the record if we don't have a

recording of what happened. We could also

reopen the record. We could also have a

discussion about what occurred and kind of

reengineer what the record was in that way to

save some time, because I think the factual

issues are pretty narrow.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: I -- looking forward to

this, I assumed it was going to be a de novo

hearing remanded back to us from the Court.

I'm hearing from you two that that doesn't
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necessarily need to be the case, that you're

not here to change our opinion or decision.

You're here to ask that we spell out in more

detail, each of us, the basis for our vote.

MR. STOCKDELL: Well, that's -- those

are -- those are separate issues. What we're

asking for is different from what you may do.

I would, of course, ask that the decision be

changed, because there is nothing to say that

you can't reverse your decision. You can

absolutely do that at that point, and that's

what we'd prefer. I am realistic that you may

not do that, but you could.

So that's what I'm asking for is a

reversal of the decision, but what you may do

is reopen the evidentiary record if you so

choose. That's not what I was prepared for,

because the statute does say that we're

supposed to avoid repetitious evidence. And

since we've already heard the exact same

evidence, it would be repetitious.

MR. CALDWELL: I have a question. I'm

not a lawyer. Okay. And I'm a newbie on this

panel.

What is missing in the statement of
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findings in what was submitted to the Court?

I mean, I don't see a section in what was

submitted, because you're the plaintiff, so

you --

MS. GROSSMAN: If I may, and if Attorney

Stockdell has no objection, I will give the

Board this proposed findings and decision.

And I know there wasn't an attorney

representing the Town when you heard this the

first time. So this is something you might

see. So you can take this, and this can be

your guide, keeping in mind this is the Town's

position.

MR. CALDWELL: Can I ask you why this

wasn't submitted to the Court?

MS. GROSSMAN: Well, because the Court

was hearing an appeal, so the briefs that the

Court saw were -- we didn't have the

opportunity to do this. This would be a

product of the Board.

MR. CALDWELL: Is it normally submitted

earlier in the process? Like, when the judge

was reviewing it, he would have a --

MS. GROSSMAN: No, not the judge, because

this is -- this is what in a perfect world,
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really were. So I was waiting to see those.

And perhaps this is -- this might be a good

way to have a discussion at this point. There

is nothing in the remand order that prevents

the Board from accepting this and adopting

this as the decision. That's absolutely the

case, that you can proceed to adopt this,

proceed to do everything that Ms. Grossman has

suggested. That's absolutely appropriate from

my view. The problems here are that, you

know, we're slicing things very thin on

factual conclusions. And there is a

difference between a factual conclusion and a

legal conclusion, and some of those issues

have basically taken over all of the appeal.

So I guess I would just suggest that the Board

is very careful about separating out those

issues.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Would my colleagues like

to go off record for a few minutes and read

this?

MS. SMITH: I would. Yeah, I need to

read it.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Either that, or we

could -- okay.
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MS. SMITH: Can I ask Arrian one

question?

MR. STOCKDELL: Sure.

MS. SMITH: Do you have a new lease?

Your lease is expired.

MR. STOCKDELL: We do.

MS. SMITH: Okay.

MR. STOCKDELL: We do.

MS. SMITH: Because the lease that we got

a copy of to look at expired September 30th.

MS. KARTER: I have it.

MR. STOCKDELL: Oh, I have it right here.

I have the new one. There's also -- you know,

I have proof of a current certificate and the

new lease. I don't have any objection to

those going in to the record. To the extent

the language is important to the Board, the

language is --

MS. SMITH: Is it any different than the

prior --

MR. STOCKDELL: It is. It's more

favorable to our argument now, but the

underlying arrangement hasn't changed. I

never thought that the language of the lease

had much bearing on this issue precisely
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because even if it wasn't student housing, we

could have just said it was, and then, you

know, we could have faked it. And that's not

what the point is. So I don't think what we

memorialize in the lease is really the

determinative factor. It's what the use

really is. And I think there was evidence,

sufficient evidence about the use itself.

But that said, the lease -- the previous

lease was already in the record, and this one

doesn't make anything -- if anything, it

memorializes some reference to student

housing. So I don't have any objection to you

considering that.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: So before we go off

record, just to be sure that I understand you,

you don't intend to present any witnesses or

evidence that would cause us to change our

decision. So it seems to me we are best

spending our time to review this to make the

decision palatable to Justice Anderson. Am

I --

MR. STOCKDELL: You -- it's not -- you

should -- you should act as though there had

never been an appeal. You should act as
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though it's the first instance of the decision

and make the decision the same way. You

already made your decision. This is just a

writing that explains what the decision is.

It shouldn't -- you know, if you -- if you

want to change your decision, you can do that,

but, you know --

CHAIR SHERWOOD: But there's no

evidence --

MR. STOCKDELL: I don't have any evidence

that is different than what I presented the

first time around. So if you -- because

nothing is -- nothing substantive has changed,

and I believe this is mostly kind of an

interpretive situation.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Should we go off the

record?

MR. CALDWELL: Well, I'm just thinking

that there is a three-page document. I just

spent a couple hours today reviewing my

other -- the other stuff I had, part of which

I just got today that was the defendant's

document that we submitted to the Court.

I haven't changed my opinion. If you

will remember, I was in the minority. And I
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went through it again and again, and I think

I've seen things before that I didn't -- I've

seen this time that I hadn't seen before, and

my argument would be even stronger and more

adamant in being in opposition of the Panel's

decision.

So I would like to look at what you've

got written here, but I must confess that I

think we're going to do a better job reviewing

it after we've read it over and then perhaps

met at another hour and discussed it amongst

ourselves and then reconvened here to continue

the hearing.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Well, we can't discuss

it amongst ourselves. It has to be -- any

deliberation has to be in public.

MR. CALDWELL: Well, then I would say we

are at least adjourned so that we have a

chance to look this over and compare it with

our other notes and --

CHAIR SHERWOOD: My suggestion was to go

off the record for some time. How much time

do you think you're going to need?

MR. CALDWELL: I have no idea what's in

the document, but I have a feeling that it
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would be kind of hasty to rush through this

after we dragged it on for six months or more.

MS. GROSSMAN: Sure. I just want to be

very clear. So -- so Arrian said you should

go back to as if there was no appeal. The

Court hasn't said that that's what you need to

do. As I said, it can just be a matter of

dotting I's and crossing T's and better

conveying what your decision back in April

was, making it clearer for the Court; and then

the Court can make its decision whether that

conclusion is supported by the record. That's

really all that's happening. The Court has

given you some wide latitude to add to the

record if you think it's necessary, but you

haven't been instructed by the Court to do

even that much.

What I have tried to do is simply

articulate what I think the Board has already

done and helped you to show your work. And so

that's what that document is. There shouldn't

be any new information in that for you. It

should just be a step-by-step explanation of

what was presented back in April that you've

reviewed and how then you reached the
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right.

MR. CALDWELL: Kelly, I have not received

a copy of the decision that Ed Bearor helped

prepare. Could I get a copy of that?

MS. KARTER: I sent that to everybody,

just like the other information that you asked

for this morning.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Well, I know what

happened with that one I think.

MS. KARTER: Everybody got a copy of it.

MS. GROSSMAN: Yeah. It's tagged on

to -- to this. It's right in the back of

that.

MR. CALDWELL: Which was this?

MS. GROSSMAN: And that was part of the

court record.

MR. CALDWELL: That's the one you gave me

this morning, but I didn't get a copy of the

decision.

MS. KARTER: It's right in the back.

MR. STOCKDELL: I have it right here if

you'd like.

MR. CALDWELL: I'd like a copy for my own

records.

MS. GROSSMAN: So Page 8 I think is
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the --

MR. CALDWELL: Can you make a copy of

that for me?

MS. KARTER: Yes, I can make a copy of

that.

MR. CALDWELL: I mean, that would be

something else I'd like to look over before we

continue deliberations if that's the case.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Let's go off the record,

give Mr. Caldwell some time. And if it's not

enough time, then we'll go from there. That's

all I can suggest.

(A short break was taken.)

CHAIR SHERWOOD: We are back on the

record. Members of the Board have reviewed

the proposed findings and decisions. Mr.

Caldwell has some questions.

MR. CALDWELL: Mr. Stockdell, it's my

understanding that everyone that resides at

the facility in Hampden on the Mayo Road,

okay, is a student at the school in Belfast,

the Sweetser School. Or am I wrong? There

are people that reside there --

MR. STOCKDELL: No. That's correct.

MR. CALDWELL: They all are students at
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the school?

MR. STOCKDELL: That's correct.

MR. CALDWELL: So there is no one else

getting residential lodging there that isn't a

student?

MS. GROSSMAN: I just have to -- I'm

sorry. To be clear -- so Attorney Stockdell

is not a witness.

MR. CALDWELL: Well, he knows the

service, correct?

MS. GROSSMAN: Well, he can't really

speak from his knowledge -- anything from --

that he says has to be supported by either a

document or some testimony that was already

given. And I admit that not having been at

the hearing, I don't know.

MR. CALDWELL: Well, I don't have all the

documents, but just as a matter of fact, if we

need to investigate that, my understanding is

that everybody that stays there is a student.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: If that's your

understanding and that's the way you voted,

then continue to understand.

MR. STOCKDELL: Well, perhaps we could --

we could approach it this way. There was
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testimony about that. My recollection of the

testimony was that it supported that

conclusion that -- that the testimony of Mr.

Mistos was that all of the students went to

that -- go to school in Belfast, that none of

them do not. That's just kind of how the

program works.

So I agree with you that I think it is a

correct assessment of what the testimony was.

And regardless, that is our position. So

separating out testimony from evidence, that's

certainly is our position.

MR. CALDWELL: Well, I think it would

shed another light on the whole issue if you

had other people that were just staying there

for lodging and they had nothing to do with

the school.

MR. STOCKDELL: Certainly. I mean my

recollection of the testimony was actually

quite specific that Mr. Mistos said that, you

know, there are some people there overnight,

but they don't live there and they don't sleep

there; but they're, you know, in a supervisory

capacity.

MR. CALDWELL: Well, that's to be
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understood. Okay.

Kelly, I have a question about the

billing. If the Town was to charge a service

charge to the facility, who would the bill go

to?

MS. KARTER: The bill goes to Acadia.

They're the owner of the property.

MR. CALDWELL: So Acadia Hospital is the

owner?

MS. KARTER: Owner, correct.

MR. CALDWELL: Much is made in this case

about who the owner is and what the owner has

to do with residential --

MS. KARTER: No. No. Acadia has always

admitted they're the owner. They're leasing

the property.

MR. CALDWELL: Through somebody else?

MS. KARTER: To Sweetser, correct.

MR. CALDWELL: Okay.

MS. GROSSMAN: If I could. I think that

something that wasn't articulated before and I

tried to put it here is there's sort of two

bases, as I gleaned from reading the record,

for the Board's decision. One, the Town's

position is that you don't even need to look
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at what Sweetser uses the property for because

the ordinance applies to the property owner,

and the property owner uses it as a rental

income-generating property.

MR. CALDWELL: But the implication there

is that that's the whole justification. And

that's the second question I would like to ask

Mr. Stockdell.

MS. GROSSMAN: Absolutely.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: We're talking -- we're

talking about a de novo situation here. Is

there anything in there that doesn't reflect

your decision, Mr. Caldwell?

MR. CALDWELL: My decision, as I voted

before, is stronger now. And what I'd like

you to do, if you want to -- unless we're

going to say we're not going to do de novo, I

would like you to look at not the statute on

the service charge, but look at the statute on

the tax exemption qualification.

MS. KARTER: But they are exempt.

MR. STOCKDELL: But with respect, that is

not --

MR. CALDWELL: I agree. I agree. But

you see, the point is that if you look at what
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the Legislature has said about the tax

exemption classification of the charitable and

benevolent institutions, it clarifies a couple

of important concepts about what is going on

behind the scenes as far as the State is

concerned by granting special benefits.

Things that relate to where the money is

coming from, who's running it is irrelevant as

far as the State is concerned. If it's

charitable and benevolent, that's okay. It

could be Ford Motor Company that is supporting

this enterprise. Obviously, Acadia Healthcare

is a nonprofit, charitable --

MR. STOCKDELL: Only nonprofits involved

here.

MR. CALDWELL: Yeah, exactly. And the

other thing is that there seems to be an

effort to differentiate between the kind of

students we're talking about. The ordinance

makes no distinction in that regard.

Section 508 in Chapter 36 makes no distinction

whatsoever.

And I would read to you Chapter 652 of

Title 36 and it reads -- it sheds a light on

distinguishing the kinds of people that are
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getting nonprofit benefits.

MS. KARTER: I'm sorry, Avery, but this

is a residential treatment facility. You

folks have made this decision.

MR. CALDWELL: And the residential

treatment facility is eligible for these. Let

me just read it to you. Okay.

MS. KARTER: I know the law.

MR. CALDWELL: Let me read it to others

then.

MS. KARTER: I think we all are aware.

MR. CALDWELL: Such an institution may

not be deprived of the right of exemption by

reason of -- or by reason of limitation in the

classes of persons for whose benefit the funds

are applied.

MS. GROSSMAN: Right. That's tax

exemption, and everyone we're talking about

here is tax exempted. And that's not an

issue. That's not an issue for you to decide.

MR. CALDWELL: Well, you tried to create

a distinction where I would imply that the

intent of the Legislature in creating these

laws was not to create distinctions between

classes of people and where --
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MS. GROSSMAN: But not as to the tax

exempt --

MR. CALDWELL: -- the money is coming

from.

MS. GROSSMAN: We're not -- we're not

arguing that Acadia should not be tax exempt

or that Sweetser should not be tax exempt.

We're talking about the service charge, which

is different. So --

MR. CALDWELL: Well, if you are willing

to acknowledge that they are tax exempt, then

you look at it conceptually and say: Well,

what is the intent of the Legislature in

granting tax exemption and why have they

created this special little loophole here to

give those students a benefit? And the answer

is they're not saying you can't --

MS. GROSSMAN: Well, I think you're

saying that because they're tax exempt --

MR. CALDWELL: The answer is they're not

saying you can't -- you can't say we're not

going to provide tax exemption to normal

students --

CHAIR SHERWOOD: We're carrying on an

interesting discussion which can be done at
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another time. Let me say for the record that

the two board members who voted to deny the

appeal have reviewed the proposed findings and

decisions and are in agreement with the

conclusions, and that's how we based our

conclusion. And as chairman, I have signed

this.

Now, Mr. Caldwell is on record as

strongly opposing the decision to appeal. I'm

sure he's on record objecting to our signing

it, but it does reflect the conclusions and

opinion and decision of the two that voted to

deny the appeal.

MS. SMITH: Yes. This is Aimee Smith.

I'm very comfortable with Ted signing this on

behalf.

MS. GROSSMAN: As a matter of procedure,

I would ask the Board to make a motion and

have a vote just for completeness sake to

adopt this.

MS. SMITH: I make a motion that we adopt

the Town of Hampden Board of Assessment Review

proposed findings and decision in re: Acadia

Hospital Corporation Appeal of Service Charge

Ordinance to be signed by Mr. Sherwood this
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24th day of October, 2017.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: I second it. All in

favor? Any opposed?

With that, unless there are any

questions --

MR. CALDWELL: Let me make one concluding

comments now that we've passed this over. I

am not opposed to the idea of the Town having

this service charge. Don't misunderstand me.

It seems a very reasonable thing. And I'm

guessing when the State Legislature passed

this law, it was hard to get housing for

students that were coming 50 years over --

50 miles over mud roads to get to class. So

they needed those places. Times have changed.

But that's not my role here. My role is to

look at what the law is right now, and if the

law isn't appropriate, take it back to the

Legislature. That's the way you handle the

problem.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Your role here is to

tell us whether or not that sets forth what we

decided at the last meeting. That's all we're

talking about.

MR. CALDWELL: And I disagreed with the
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conclusion before.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: I know you disagreed

with conclusions, Avery, but those are the

conclusions that resulted from that decision,

whether you like them or not .

MR. CALDWELL: Well --

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Is that -- is that the

motion that you just had?

MS. GROSSMAN: No. I think everything

that the Board has done is appropriate now.

The vote is 2 to 1, as it was before. That is

what I expected. I would ask that, you know,

proposed be struck through if you're going to

adopt this as the decision; and I think that

is appropriate.

MR. STOCKDELL: I have one final bit of

housekeeping that I'd just like to do as

(inaudible). Because we don't have the record

from the previous hearing, and things have

changed since then, at the conclusion of the

previous hearing, my recollection is obviously

that, Mr. Caldwell, your opinion was that the

property was used for student housing. And my

recollection is that, Mr. Sherwood, you made

the comment that it's clear that it's used for
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student housing.

Ms. Smith, I didn't really hear anything

that I can recollect from you. I assume -- I

don't want to assume anything. Would you --

do you -- what is -- what was your opinion --

what is your opinion about whether or not it's

used as student housing?

CHAIR SHERWOOD: Are we off the record?

We're on the record?

MS. KARTER: Yes.

MR. STOCKDELL: Was that not being

recorded?

MS. KARTER: No. It's being recorded.

MR. STOCKDELL: Well, can I ask the

question again just so we get it on the

record?

So I believe we're on the record now. I

just wanted to address the conclusion of the

prior hearing where I believe Mr. Caldwell was

pretty clear that you stated that you thought

the property at issue was used for student

housing. And, Mr. Sherwood, you stated that

it was -- my recollection is that you stated

that it was clear that the property was used

for student housing. And I didn't -- I don't
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recall anything about what Ms. Smith said.

Is that -- first of all, is that

recollection correct from your standpoint?

Could you clarify that one way or the other?

MR. CALDWELL: Correct from my

standpoint.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: That's not correct from

my standpoint. I think my disposition was

that the use by the tenant didn't fall to the

advantage of the property owner, that that was

an income-producing property. So it was

irrelevant to me at that point whether or not

it was student housing.

MR. STOCKDELL: But in terms of the use,

do you have an opinion of the character of the

use?

CHAIR SHERWOOD: If I have to make a

decision on student housing as the proposed

findings pointed, if we want that one step

further, I think that would be too broad a

decision to be student housing. You know, my

thought is this is a -- this is a residence

where young people live and they eat and they

sleep and they recreate, and when it's school

time, they get on a bus and go to school.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

33

That sounds like my house or your house. My

kids live there. They eat there. They

recreate there. They watch TV there. And

when it's time to go to school, they get on a

bus and go to school. So is my house student

housing? I don't think so. But it really was

not a factor for me.

The factor was that the use of --

whatever the use of the property was, it did

not fall to the advantages of the property

owner. That's a property leased for a fee for

a profit-making situation.

MR. STOCKDELL: I have one more question

for you, Mr. Sherwood, if I may.

Does the number of students -- does the

number of children at the property make a

difference for you in terms of whether or not

it's student housing?

CHAIR SHERWOOD: No. I -- no. I don't

see a threshold, whether it's -- whether it's

a -- we have a number of independent

situations in Hampden, as in other area

communities, with four to six young people

there with house parents. Whether that was

16, it wouldn't change my opinion.
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MS. SMITH: I am -- I am concerned that

the owner of the real estate is not -- that

the lease -- the lease troubles me as well.

And I -- and I don't like the definition of

student housing, because we really don't have

one. There's -- the ordinance is not helpful

in that regard, and it doesn't say that it has

to be a real estate owner or the less -- the

tenant. It's so vague that I'm troubled by

it. And that's -- I think that's actually the

comment that I made to Ted or in the meeting

that maybe you didn't hear or didn't get on

the record is that it just -- it troubled me.

I couldn't quite get my mind wrapped around

how are we going to figure this out.

MR. STOCKDELL: No. I do recall you

saying that.

MS. SMITH: Yeah.

MR. STOCKDELL: I just don't -- I just

didn't recall --

MS. SMITH: Yeah. And I really am not

any clearer today. I am -- I am -- you know,

when it is the landowner that is coming before

you, it's a completely different situation

than a lessor. And then I don't know what --
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you know, I feel the same way that Ted does, I

guess basically.

MR. STOCKDELL: So would -- a nonprofit

that provides kind of dormitories for a school

that does not run the schooling, would that

also trouble you?

MS. GROSSMAN: Okay. I kind of would ask

that we bring this to a close. This sort of

post-decisional polling of the Board is not

really called for, and the statute

(inaudible). I think the record has been

made. The decision has been made, and I don't

think there's -- this is --

CHAIR SHERWOOD: We can't cross-examine

you. So we probably -- you probably shouldn't

be cross-examining us. You certainly know Mr.

Caldwell's position and ours.

Anything further?

MR. STOCKDELL: No.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: I'll use this gavel that

somebody put here.

MR. STOCKDELL: You certainty should.

CHAIR SHERWOOD: The meeting is

adjourned. Thank you, all.



Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

36

CERTIFICATE

I, Tammy M. Smith, a Notary Public in and

for the State of Maine, hereby certify that

the foregoing is a correct transcription of my

stenographic notes from an audio CD in the

matter of the above-entitled cause.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I subscribe my hand and

affix my seal this 29th day of November, 2017.

Tammy M. Smith
Court Reporter/Notary Public

My Commission Expires
January 12, 2019



1 [1] - 30:11

12 [2] - 5:13, 36:15

16 [1] - 33:25

2 [1] - 30:11

2017 [5] - 1:12, 5:4,

5:13, 29:1, 36:9

2019 [1] - 36:15

24 [1] - 1:12

24th [2] - 5:4, 29:1

25 [1] - 5:11

2691 [1] - 6:14

29th [1] - 36:9

30-A [1] - 6:14

30th [1] - 13:10

36 [2] - 25:21, 25:24

3:30 [1] - 5:4

50 [2] - 29:13, 29:14

508 [1] - 25:21

652 [1] - 25:23

8 [1] - 19:25

above-entitled [1] -

36:7

absolutely [4] - 8:11,

12:6, 12:9, 24:9

Acadia [10] - 1:6, 2:5,

5:9, 5:14, 23:6, 23:8,

23:14, 25:12, 27:6,

28:23

accepting [1] - 12:5

acknowledge [1] -

27:11

act [2] - 14:24, 14:25

actions [1] - 6:9

adamant [1] - 16:5

add [2] - 4:9, 17:14

additional [2] - 3:6,

3:8

address [2] - 5:8,

31:18

addresses [1] - 7:10

adequate [1] - 18:8

adjourned [2] - 16:18,

35:24

admit [1] - 21:15

admitted [1] - 23:15

adopt [5] - 10:7, 12:7,

28:20, 28:21, 30:14

adopting [1] - 12:5

advantage [1] - 32:10

advantages [1] -

33:10

affix [1] - 36:9

agree [4] - 6:3, 22:8,

24:24

agreement [1] - 28:4

ahead [1] - 18:24

Aimee [3] - 1:19, 5:7,

28:14

Anderson [8] - 5:13,

6:13, 6:24, 7:12,

11:11, 11:13, 14:21,

18:24

answer [2] - 27:16,

27:20

appeal [13] - 5:9, 9:17,

11:1, 11:5, 12:15,

14:25, 17:5, 18:16,

18:21, 18:22, 28:3,

28:9, 28:13

Appeal [2] - 1:7, 28:24

appellate [1] - 10:1

applied [1] - 26:16

applies [1] - 24:2

approach [1] - 21:25

appropriate [6] - 6:21,

7:12, 12:9, 29:18,

30:10, 30:15

April [2] - 17:9, 17:24

area [1] - 33:22

arguing [1] - 27:6

argument [2] - 13:22,

16:4

arrangement [1] -

13:23

ARRIAN [1] - 2:6

Arrian [4] - 3:3, 5:15,

13:1, 17:4

articulate [2] - 4:6,

17:19

articulated [1] - 23:21

ascertain [1] - 7:3

Assessment [2] - 5:3,

28:22

assessment [2] -

18:22, 22:9

ASSESSMENT [1] -

1:2

Assessor [1] - 1:20

assume [2] - 31:3,

31:4

assumed [1] - 7:23

attention [1] - 6:12

attorney [1] - 9:8

Attorney [3] - 5:15,

9:5, 21:7

audio [1] - 36:6

August [1] - 5:13

Avery [5] - 1:19, 4:22,

5:7, 26:2, 30:3

avoid [1] - 8:19

aware [1] - 26:11

based [2] - 3:20, 28:5

bases [1] - 23:23

basis [4] - 6:18, 7:4,

8:4, 11:25

bearing [1] - 13:25

Bearor [1] - 19:3

become [1] - 6:16

becomes [1] - 10:8

behalf [1] - 28:16

behind [1] - 25:5

Belfast [2] - 20:21,

22:5

benefit [2] - 26:15,

27:16

benefits [2] - 25:6,

26:1

benevolent [2] - 25:3,

25:10

best [1] - 14:19

better [2] - 16:9, 17:8

between [4] - 12:13,

18:15, 25:18, 26:24

bill [2] - 23:4, 23:6

billing [1] - 23:3

bit [2] - 11:8, 30:16

board [5] - 5:6, 6:9,

10:1, 18:22, 28:2

BOARD [2] - 1:2, 1:17

Board [21] - 1:19,

1:19, 4:8, 5:3, 6:4,

6:15, 7:7, 9:7, 9:20,

10:7, 10:17, 11:3,

12:5, 12:16, 13:17,

17:19, 20:15, 28:18,

28:22, 30:10, 35:9

Board's [2] - 6:12,

23:24

body [1] - 4:3

break [1] - 20:13

briefs [1] - 9:17

bring [1] - 35:8

broad [1] - 32:20

bus [2] - 32:25, 33:5

Caldwell [8] - 1:19,

5:7, 20:10, 20:17,

24:13, 28:8, 30:22,

31:19

CALDWELL [39] -

8:22, 9:14, 9:21,

11:17, 15:18, 16:17,

16:24, 19:2, 19:14,

19:17, 19:23, 20:2,

20:6, 20:18, 20:25,

21:3, 21:9, 21:17,

22:13, 22:25, 23:8,

23:11, 23:17, 23:19,

24:5, 24:14, 24:24,

25:16, 26:5, 26:9,

26:12, 26:21, 27:3,

27:10, 27:20, 29:6,

29:25, 30:6, 32:5

Caldwell's [1] - 35:17

capacity [1] - 22:24

careful [1] - 12:17

carrying [1] - 27:24

case [4] - 8:1, 12:7,

20:8, 23:11

CD [1] - 36:6

certain [1] - 6:10

certainly [5] - 7:11,

18:10, 22:12, 22:18,

35:16

certainty [1] - 35:22

certificate [1] - 13:14

CERTIFICATE [1] -

36:1

certify [1] - 36:4

Chair [1] - 1:18

CHAIR [38] - 4:12,

4:19, 4:24, 5:2, 7:22,

10:4, 10:15, 10:20,

10:23, 11:8, 11:14,

12:19, 12:24, 14:15,

15:8, 15:16, 16:14,

16:21, 18:2, 18:4,

18:7, 19:8, 20:9,

20:14, 21:21, 24:10,

27:24, 29:2, 29:21,

30:2, 30:7, 31:8,

32:7, 32:17, 33:19,

35:14, 35:20, 35:23

chairing [1] - 5:5

chairman [1] - 28:6

chance [2] - 11:20,

16:19

change [4] - 8:2,

14:18, 15:6, 33:25

changed [6] - 8:9,

13:23, 15:13, 15:24,

29:15, 30:20

Chapter [2] - 25:21,

25:23

character [1] - 32:15

charge [6] - 5:10,

23:3, 23:4, 24:19,

27:8, 29:9

Charge [2] - 1:7, 28:24

charitable [3] - 25:2,

25:10, 25:13

children [1] - 33:16

chime [1] - 3:3

choose [1] - 8:17

chooses [1] - 10:7

Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

1

cited [1] - 6:13

clarifies [1] - 25:3

clarify [1] - 32:4

class [1] - 29:14

classes [2] - 26:15,

26:25

classification [1] -

25:2

clear [6] - 17:4, 18:21,

21:7, 30:25, 31:20,

31:24

clearer [2] - 17:10,

34:22

close [1] - 35:8

colleagues [1] - 12:19

comfortable [1] -

28:15

coming [4] - 25:8,

27:3, 29:13, 34:23

comment [2] - 30:25,

34:11

comments [2] - 5:22,

29:7

Commission [1] -

36:14

committee [1] - 10:4

communities [1] -

33:23

Company [1] - 25:11

compare [1] - 16:19

complete [1] - 6:24

completely [1] - 34:24

completeness [1] -

28:19

con [1] - 11:2

concepts [1] - 25:4

conceptually [1] -

27:12

concerned [4] - 18:9,

25:6, 25:9, 34:1

concluding [1] - 29:6

conclusion [9] -

12:13, 12:14, 17:12,

18:1, 22:3, 28:6,

30:1, 30:20, 31:18

conclusions [12] -

4:1, 4:3, 6:18, 6:19,

7:5, 7:6, 10:3, 12:12,

28:5, 28:11, 30:3,

30:4

confess [1] - 16:8

connected [1] - 3:25

considering [1] -

14:14

contention [2] - 10:23,

11:3



continue [3] - 16:12,

20:8, 21:23

conveying [1] - 17:9

copy [9] - 11:18,

13:10, 19:3, 19:4,

19:10, 19:18, 19:23,

20:2, 20:4

Corporation [4] - 1:6,

2:5, 5:9, 28:24

correct [13] - 10:6,

18:19, 18:20, 20:24,

21:2, 21:10, 22:9,

23:10, 23:18, 32:3,

32:5, 32:7, 36:5

couple [2] - 15:20,

25:3

course [2] - 7:12, 8:8

court [1] - 19:16

Court [22] - 3:14, 4:1,

6:8, 6:9, 6:11, 7:24,

9:1, 9:15, 9:16, 9:18,

10:10, 10:12, 10:24,

15:23, 17:6, 17:10,

17:11, 17:13, 17:16,

18:9, 36:12

Court's [1] - 11:4

create [5] - 3:19, 10:5,

10:11, 26:21, 26:24

created [2] - 3:19,

27:15

creating [1] - 26:23

cross [2] - 35:14,

35:16

cross-examine [1] -

35:14

cross-examining [1] -

35:16

crossing [1] - 17:8

current [1] - 13:14

dated [1] - 5:13

de [3] - 7:23, 24:11,

24:17

decide [2] - 6:4, 26:20

decided [1] - 29:23

decision [41] - 3:15,

7:9, 8:2, 8:8, 8:10,

8:15, 9:7, 10:17,

10:25, 11:5, 11:6,

11:11, 11:25, 12:6,

14:19, 14:21, 15:1,

15:2, 15:3, 15:4,

15:6, 16:6, 17:9,

17:11, 18:17, 18:18,

18:19, 19:3, 19:19,

23:24, 24:13, 24:14,

26:4, 28:9, 28:12,

28:23, 30:4, 30:14,

32:18, 32:21, 35:12

decisional [1] - 35:9

decisions [3] - 6:15,

20:16, 28:4

defendant's [1] -

15:22

definition [1] - 34:4

deliberation [1] -

16:16

deliberations [4] -

3:11, 3:12, 3:18,

20:8

demonstrative [1] -

6:7

denial [1] - 6:22

denied [2] - 11:6,

11:10

deny [2] - 28:2, 28:13

deprived [1] - 26:13

detail [2] - 7:11, 8:4

determinative [1] -

14:6

determine [1] - 7:14

difference [3] - 12:13,

18:15, 33:17

different [5] - 8:7,

13:19, 15:11, 27:9,

34:24

differentiate [1] -

25:18

disagreed [2] - 29:25,

30:2

discretion [2] - 6:20,

7:8

discuss [2] - 3:18,

16:14

discussed [1] - 16:11

discussion [3] - 7:18,

12:3, 27:25

disposition [1] - 32:8

distinction [3] - 25:20,

25:21, 26:22

distinctions [1] -

26:24

distinguishing [1] -

25:25

document [5] - 15:19,

15:23, 16:25, 17:21,

21:14

documents [1] - 21:18

done [4] - 3:17, 17:20,

27:25, 30:10

dormitories [1] - 35:4

dots [1] - 3:24

dotting [1] - 17:8

dragged [1] - 17:2

eat [2] - 32:23, 33:2

Ed [3] - 10:16, 10:20,

19:3

effort [1] - 25:18

either [2] - 12:24,

21:13

eligible [1] - 26:6

enterprise [1] - 25:12

entitled [1] - 36:7

Esq [2] - 2:4, 2:6

estate [2] - 34:2, 34:8

evidence [9] - 3:8,

8:19, 8:21, 14:7,

14:8, 14:18, 15:9,

15:10, 22:11

evidentiary [1] - 8:16

exact [1] - 8:20

exactly [3] - 7:3,

11:16, 25:16

examine [1] - 35:14

examining [1] - 35:16

exempt [6] - 24:21,

27:2, 27:6, 27:7,

27:11, 27:19

exempted [1] - 26:19

exemption [6] - 24:20,

25:2, 26:13, 26:18,

27:14, 27:22

expected [1] - 30:12

expired [2] - 13:5,

13:10

Expires [1] - 36:14

explains [1] - 15:4

explanation [1] -

17:23

extent [1] - 13:16

facility [4] - 20:20,

23:4, 26:3, 26:6

fact [3] - 6:20, 18:16,

21:18

factor [3] - 14:6, 33:7,

33:8

facts [1] - 6:24

factual [3] - 7:20,

12:12, 12:13

faked [1] - 14:3

fall [2] - 32:9, 33:10

far [3] - 18:8, 25:5,

25:9

favor [2] - 18:23, 29:3

favorable [1] - 13:22

fee [1] - 33:11

few [1] - 12:20

figure [1] - 34:15

final [1] - 30:16

findings [14] - 3:25,

4:2, 6:17, 6:19, 7:4,

7:5, 7:14, 9:1, 9:7,

10:3, 20:16, 28:3,

28:23, 32:19

first [7] - 4:13, 9:10,

10:24, 11:4, 15:1,

15:12, 32:2

folks [1] - 26:4

Ford [1] - 25:11

foregoing [1] - 36:5

formal [1] - 5:24

formally [1] - 5:21

forth [3] - 11:1, 11:10,

29:22

forward [1] - 7:22

four [1] - 33:23

funds [1] - 26:15

gavel [1] - 35:20

general [1] - 6:5

generating [1] - 24:4

given [3] - 11:12,

17:14, 21:15

gleaned [1] - 23:23

granting [2] - 25:6,

27:14

Grossman [3] - 5:16,

5:22, 12:8

GROSSMAN [29] -

2:4, 3:3, 9:5, 9:16,

9:24, 10:6, 10:18,

10:22, 11:2, 11:12,

11:16, 17:3, 18:3,

18:6, 18:10, 19:11,

19:15, 19:25, 21:6,

21:11, 23:20, 24:9,

26:17, 27:1, 27:5,

27:18, 28:17, 30:9,

35:7

guess [4] - 11:9,

12:16, 18:11, 35:2

guessing [1] - 29:11

guide [1] - 9:12

HAMPDEN [1] - 1:1

Hampden [8] - 1:20,

2:3, 5:3, 5:11, 5:16,

20:20, 28:22, 33:22

hand [1] - 36:8

handle [1] - 29:19

happy [1] - 4:11

hard [1] - 29:12

hasty [1] - 17:1

hate [1] - 18:14

Healthcare [1] - 25:12

hear [2] - 31:2, 34:12

heard [2] - 8:20, 9:9

hearing [10] - 5:6,

Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

2

7:24, 7:25, 9:17,

11:23, 16:13, 21:16,

30:19, 30:21, 31:19

HEARING [1] - 1:5

helped [2] - 17:20,

19:3

helpful [1] - 34:6

hereby [1] - 36:4

Hospital [6] - 1:6, 2:5,

5:9, 5:14, 23:8,

28:24

hour [1] - 16:11

hours [1] - 15:20

house [4] - 33:1, 33:5,

33:24

housekeeping [2] -

5:17, 30:17

housing [14] - 14:1,

14:13, 29:12, 30:23,

31:1, 31:7, 31:22,

31:25, 32:13, 32:18,

32:21, 33:6, 33:18,

34:5

I's [1] - 17:8

idea [2] - 16:24, 29:8

implication [1] - 24:5

imply [1] - 26:22

important [2] - 13:17,

25:4

imposed [1] - 5:10

IN [2] - 1:6, 36:8

inaudible [3] - 4:3,

10:16, 18:5

inaudible) [2] - 30:18,

35:11

include [2] - 6:10,

6:17

income [2] - 24:4,

32:11

income-generating

[1] - 24:4

income-producing [1]

- 32:11

incorporated [1] -

5:24

independent [1] -

33:21

information [2] -

17:22, 19:6

instance [1] - 15:1

institution [1] - 26:12

institutions [1] - 25:3

instructed [1] - 17:16

intend [1] - 14:17

intent [2] - 26:23,

27:13



interesting [1] - 27:25

interpretive [1] - 15:15

interrupt [1] - 4:24

investigate [1] - 21:19

involved [1] - 25:14

irrelevant [2] - 25:8,

32:12

issue [5] - 13:25,

22:14, 26:20, 31:21

issues [5] - 6:20, 7:21,

8:6, 12:14, 12:18

items [1] - 5:17

itself [1] - 14:8

January [1] - 36:15

job [1] - 16:9

judge [2] - 9:22, 9:24

Judge [1] - 11:11

judicial [1] - 4:3

juncture [1] - 6:5

jurisdiction [1] - 10:13

Justice [8] - 5:12,

6:13, 6:23, 7:12,

11:11, 11:13, 14:21,

18:24

justification [1] - 24:6

KARTER [16] - 4:16,

13:11, 19:5, 19:10,

19:20, 20:4, 23:6,

23:10, 23:14, 23:18,

24:21, 26:2, 26:8,

26:11, 31:10, 31:13

Karter [1] - 1:20

Kate [1] - 5:16

KATE [1] - 2:4

keep [1] - 18:11

keeping [1] - 9:12

Kelly [3] - 1:20, 19:2,

23:2

kids [1] - 33:2

kind [9] - 7:8, 7:18,

15:14, 17:1, 18:23,

22:6, 25:18, 35:4,

35:7

kinds [1] - 25:25

knowledge [1] - 21:12

knows [1] - 21:9

landowner [1] - 34:23

language [4] - 6:7,

13:17, 13:18, 13:24

last [2] - 11:23, 29:23

latitude [1] - 17:14

law [5] - 6:20, 26:8,

29:12, 29:17, 29:18

laws [1] - 26:24

lawyer [1] - 8:23

lease [10] - 13:4, 13:5,

13:9, 13:15, 13:24,

14:5, 14:9, 14:10,

34:3

leased [1] - 33:11

leasing [1] - 23:15

least [1] - 16:18

leave [1] - 3:7

legal [1] - 12:14

Legislature [5] - 25:1,

26:23, 27:13, 29:11,

29:19

less [1] - 34:8

lessor [1] - 34:25

lieu [1] - 10:15

light [2] - 22:14, 25:24

likely [1] - 11:22

limitation [1] - 26:14

live [3] - 22:22, 32:23,

33:2

lodging [2] - 21:4,

22:16

look [11] - 13:10, 16:7,

16:19, 18:24, 20:7,

23:25, 24:18, 24:19,

24:25, 27:12, 29:17

looking [2] - 6:24,

7:22

loophole [1] - 27:15

Lowell [1] - 1:18

Maine [1] - 36:4

materials [1] - 6:20

matter [6] - 5:8, 5:12,

17:7, 21:18, 28:17,

36:7

Mayo [2] - 5:11, 20:20

mean [3] - 9:2, 20:6,

22:18

meeting [4] - 5:2,

29:23, 34:11, 35:23

Member [2] - 1:19,

1:19

members [3] - 5:6,

20:15, 28:2

MEMBERS [1] - 1:17

memorialize [1] - 14:5

memorializes [1] -

14:12

met [1] - 16:11

might [3] - 7:13, 9:10,

12:2

miles [1] - 29:14

mind [3] - 7:7, 9:12,

34:14

mine's [1] - 4:22

minority [1] - 15:25

minutes [1] - 12:20

missing [1] - 8:25

mistake [1] - 18:23

Mistos [2] - 22:4,

22:20

misunderstand [1] -

29:9

money [2] - 25:7, 27:3

months [1] - 17:2

morning [2] - 19:7,

19:18

mostly [1] - 15:14

motion [3] - 28:18,

28:21, 30:8

Motor [1] - 25:11

MR [70] - 4:13, 4:17,

4:25, 5:20, 8:5, 8:22,

9:14, 9:21, 11:17,

11:19, 13:3, 13:6,

13:8, 13:12, 13:21,

14:23, 15:10, 15:18,

16:17, 16:24, 18:11,

19:2, 19:14, 19:17,

19:21, 19:23, 20:2,

20:6, 20:18, 20:24,

20:25, 21:2, 21:3,

21:9, 21:17, 21:24,

22:13, 22:18, 22:25,

23:8, 23:11, 23:17,

23:19, 24:5, 24:14,

24:22, 24:24, 25:14,

25:16, 26:5, 26:9,

26:12, 26:21, 27:3,

27:10, 27:20, 29:6,

29:25, 30:6, 30:16,

31:11, 31:14, 32:5,

32:14, 33:13, 34:16,

34:19, 35:3, 35:19,

35:22

MS [56] - 3:3, 4:16,

4:22, 9:5, 9:16, 9:24,

10:6, 10:18, 10:22,

11:2, 11:12, 11:16,

12:22, 13:1, 13:4,

13:7, 13:9, 13:11,

13:19, 17:3, 18:3,

18:6, 18:10, 19:5,

19:10, 19:11, 19:15,

19:20, 19:25, 20:4,

21:6, 21:11, 23:6,

23:10, 23:14, 23:18,

23:20, 24:9, 24:21,

26:2, 26:8, 26:11,

26:17, 27:1, 27:5,

27:18, 28:14, 28:17,

28:21, 30:9, 31:10,

31:13, 34:1, 34:18,

34:21, 35:7

mud [1] - 29:14

must [3] - 6:16, 16:8

name [1] - 5:5

narrow [1] - 7:21

necessarily [1] - 8:1

necessary [1] - 17:15

need [6] - 8:1, 12:22,

16:23, 17:6, 21:19,

23:25

needed [3] - 10:13,

11:15, 29:15

never [2] - 13:24,

14:25

new [6] - 3:16, 3:20,

13:4, 13:13, 13:15,

17:22

newbie [1] - 8:23

none [1] - 22:5

nonprofit [3] - 25:13,

26:1, 35:3

nonprofits [1] - 25:14

normal [1] - 27:22

normally [1] - 9:21

Notary [1] - 36:3

notes [2] - 16:20, 36:6

nothing [5] - 8:9, 12:4,

15:13, 22:16

November [1] - 36:9

novo [3] - 7:23, 24:11,

24:17

number [3] - 33:15,

33:16, 33:21

objecting [1] - 28:10

objection [3] - 9:6,

13:15, 14:13

obviously [2] - 25:12,

30:21

occurred [1] - 7:18

October [3] - 1:12,

5:4, 29:1

OF [4] - 1:1, 1:2, 1:17,

3:1

one [19] - 3:6, 7:2,

11:19, 11:23, 13:1,

13:13, 14:10, 18:2,

18:5, 19:9, 19:17,

21:3, 23:24, 29:6,

30:16, 32:4, 32:19,

33:13, 34:6

open [7] - 3:5, 3:6,

3:8, 4:9, 5:1, 6:4, 6:6

opened [1] - 5:21

opinion [8] - 8:2,

15:24, 28:12, 30:22,

31:5, 31:6, 32:15,

33:25

Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

3

opportunity [2] - 9:19,

10:11

opposed [4] - 10:20,

10:25, 29:3, 29:8

opposing [1] - 28:9

opposition [1] - 16:5

order [7] - 3:20, 5:13,

6:8, 6:21, 7:10, 12:4,

18:13

ordinance [3] - 24:2,

25:19, 34:6

Ordinance [2] - 1:7,

28:25

ourselves [2] - 16:12,

16:15

overnight [1] - 22:21

own [1] - 19:23

owner [12] - 23:7,

23:9, 23:10, 23:12,

23:15, 24:2, 24:3,

32:10, 33:11, 34:2,

34:8

p.m [1] - 5:4

Page [1] - 19:25

page [1] - 15:19

pages [1] - 10:21

palatable [1] - 14:21

panel [1] - 8:24

Panel's [1] - 16:5

parents [1] - 33:24

part [5] - 4:18, 6:16,

10:8, 15:21, 19:15

passed [2] - 29:7,

29:11

past [1] - 4:18

people [7] - 20:23,

22:15, 22:21, 25:25,

26:25, 32:23, 33:23

perfect [1] - 9:25

perhaps [4] - 7:5,

12:2, 16:10, 21:24

permissive [2] - 6:6,

18:13

persons [1] - 26:15

perspective [1] - 6:3

places [1] - 29:15

plaintiff [1] - 9:3

point [7] - 3:19, 6:12,

8:11, 12:3, 14:4,

24:25, 32:12

pointed [1] - 32:19

polling [1] - 35:9

position [8] - 3:10,

3:22, 4:8, 9:13,

22:10, 22:12, 23:25,

35:17



possibility [1] - 7:2

possible [2] - 6:23,

7:2

post [1] - 35:9

post-decisional [1] -

35:9

precisely [1] - 13:25

prefer [1] - 8:12

prepare [1] - 19:4

prepared [4] - 3:9, 4:2,

8:17, 10:16

present [1] - 14:17

presented [3] - 6:21,

15:11, 17:24

pretty [2] - 7:21, 31:20

prevailed [1] - 11:21

prevents [1] - 12:4

previous [3] - 14:9,

30:19, 30:21

problem [4] - 4:18,

5:23, 6:1, 29:20

problems [1] - 12:10

procedure [1] - 28:17

proceed [4] - 5:18,

7:8, 12:7, 12:8

PROCEEDINGS [1] -

3:1

proceedings [1] - 7:1

process [1] - 9:22

produce [1] - 10:2

producing [1] - 32:11

product [1] - 9:20

profit [1] - 33:12

profit-making [1] -

33:12

program [1] - 22:7

proof [1] - 13:14

property [16] - 5:10,

23:7, 23:16, 24:1,

24:2, 24:3, 24:4,

30:23, 31:21, 31:24,

32:10, 32:11, 33:9,

33:10, 33:11, 33:16

proposed [8] - 4:2,

9:7, 10:19, 20:16,

28:3, 28:23, 30:13,

32:18

provide [1] - 27:22

provides [1] - 35:4

Public [2] - 36:3,

36:12

public [1] - 16:16

PUBLIC [1] - 1:5

put [2] - 23:22, 35:21

qualification [1] -

24:20

qualify [1] - 18:12

quasi [1] - 4:3

questions [2] - 20:17,

29:5

quite [3] - 6:5, 22:20,

34:14

rather [1] - 11:8

RE [1] - 1:6

re [1] - 28:23

reached [2] - 17:25,

18:1

read [6] - 12:20,

12:23, 16:10, 25:23,

26:7, 26:9

reading [1] - 23:23

reads [1] - 25:24

real [2] - 34:2, 34:8

realistic [1] - 8:12

realize [1] - 4:20

really [12] - 3:13, 6:11,

12:1, 14:5, 14:7,

17:13, 21:11, 31:2,

33:6, 34:5, 34:21,

35:10

reason [2] - 26:14

reasonable [1] - 29:10

reasons [4] - 6:18,

7:4, 11:25, 18:20

received [1] - 19:2

recollect [1] - 31:3

recollection [6] - 22:1,

22:19, 30:21, 30:24,

31:23, 32:3

reconvened [1] -

16:12

record [40] - 3:7, 3:12,

3:18, 3:23, 4:5, 4:10,

4:20, 4:21, 5:1, 5:21,

5:24, 6:16, 6:25,

7:15, 7:17, 7:19,

8:16, 10:9, 12:20,

13:16, 14:10, 14:16,

15:17, 16:22, 17:12,

17:15, 19:16, 20:9,

20:15, 23:23, 28:1,

28:8, 28:10, 30:18,

31:8, 31:9, 31:16,

31:17, 34:13, 35:11

recorded [2] - 31:12,

31:13

recording [5] - 4:15,

4:16, 7:1, 7:16

records [1] - 19:24

recreate [2] - 32:24,

33:3

reengineer [1] - 7:19

reference [1] - 14:12

reflect [2] - 24:12,

28:11

regard [2] - 25:20,

34:7

regardless [1] - 22:10

rehash [1] - 6:2

rehearing [1] - 5:11

relate [1] - 25:7

relief [2] - 6:21, 6:22

remand [4] - 6:8, 12:4,

18:8, 18:13

remanded [2] - 5:12,

7:24

remember [1] - 15:25

rental [1] - 24:3

reopen [3] - 3:20,

7:17, 8:16

repetitious [2] - 8:19,

8:21

Reporter/Notary [1] -

36:12

represented [2] - 5:14,

5:16

representing [1] - 9:9

requirements [1] -

7:10

requires [1] - 6:14

reside [1] - 20:23

residence [1] - 32:22

residential [4] - 21:4,

23:13, 26:3, 26:5

resides [1] - 20:19

respect [1] - 24:22

resulted [1] - 30:4

reversal [1] - 8:15

reverse [1] - 8:10

review [5] - 4:2, 10:10,

11:13, 11:20, 14:20

REVIEW [1] - 1:2

Review [2] - 5:3, 28:22

reviewed [3] - 17:25,

20:15, 28:3

reviewing [3] - 9:23,

15:20, 16:9

revise [1] - 7:9

revised [1] - 7:9

Road [2] - 5:11, 20:20

roads [1] - 29:14

role [3] - 29:16, 29:21

route [1] - 4:11

run [1] - 35:5

running [1] - 25:8

rush [1] - 17:1

sake [1] - 28:19

save [1] - 7:20

saw [1] - 9:18

scenes [1] - 25:5

school [9] - 20:21,

21:1, 22:5, 22:17,

32:24, 32:25, 33:4,

33:5, 35:4

School [1] - 20:22

schooling [1] - 35:5

seal [1] - 36:9

second [3] - 11:9,

24:7, 29:2

Section [2] - 6:14,

25:21

section [1] - 9:2

see [6] - 4:10, 9:2,

9:11, 12:1, 24:25,

33:20

send [1] - 10:13

sent [1] - 19:5

separate [1] - 8:6

separating [2] - 12:17,

22:11

September [1] - 13:10

Service [2] - 1:7,

28:24

service [6] - 5:10,

21:10, 23:3, 24:19,

27:8, 29:9

sets [1] - 29:22

shed [1] - 22:14

sheds [1] - 25:24

SHERWOOD [38] -

4:12, 4:19, 4:24, 5:2,

7:22, 10:4, 10:15,

10:20, 10:23, 11:8,

11:14, 12:19, 12:24,

14:15, 15:8, 15:16,

16:14, 16:21, 18:2,

18:4, 18:7, 19:8,

20:9, 20:14, 21:21,

24:10, 27:24, 29:2,

29:21, 30:2, 30:7,

31:8, 32:7, 32:17,

33:19, 35:14, 35:20,

35:23

Sherwood [6] - 1:18,

5:5, 28:25, 30:24,

31:22, 33:14

short [1] - 20:13

show [1] - 17:20

sign [2] - 10:16, 18:2

signed [3] - 11:3,

28:6, 28:25

signing [3] - 18:5,

28:10, 28:15

similar [1] - 11:22

Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

4

simply [1] - 17:18

situation [4] - 15:15,

24:11, 33:12, 34:24

situations [1] - 33:22

six [2] - 17:2, 33:23

sleep [2] - 22:22,

32:24

slicing [1] - 12:11

SMITH [12] - 4:22,

12:22, 13:1, 13:4,

13:7, 13:9, 13:19,

28:14, 28:21, 34:1,

34:18, 34:21

Smith [7] - 1:19, 5:7,

28:14, 31:2, 32:1,

36:3, 36:11

sorry [2] - 21:7, 26:2

sort [2] - 23:22, 35:8

sounds [1] - 33:1

special [2] - 25:6,

27:15

specific [2] - 18:14,

22:20

spell [1] - 8:3

spending [1] - 14:20

spent [1] - 15:20

square [1] - 3:5

standpoint [4] - 10:1,

32:3, 32:6, 32:8

start [1] - 4:21

State [4] - 25:5, 25:9,

29:11, 36:4

statement [2] - 6:17,

8:25

states [1] - 6:15

statute [6] - 6:12,

7:11, 8:18, 24:18,

24:19, 35:10

staying [1] - 22:15

stays [1] - 21:20

stenographic [1] -

36:6

step [3] - 17:23, 32:19

step-by-step [1] -

17:23

still [1] - 7:13

Stockdell [8] - 4:12,

5:15, 5:19, 9:6,

11:17, 20:18, 21:7,

24:8

STOCKDELL [32] -

2:6, 4:13, 4:17, 4:25,

5:20, 8:5, 11:19,

13:3, 13:6, 13:8,

13:12, 13:21, 14:23,

15:10, 18:11, 19:21,



20:24, 21:2, 21:24,

22:18, 24:22, 25:14,

30:16, 31:11, 31:14,

32:14, 33:13, 34:16,

34:19, 35:3, 35:19,

35:22

Stockdell's [1] - 11:1

stood [1] - 11:7

stronger [2] - 16:4,

24:15

strongly [1] - 28:9

struck [1] - 30:13

student [16] - 14:1,

14:12, 20:21, 21:5,

21:20, 30:23, 31:1,

31:7, 31:21, 31:25,

32:13, 32:18, 32:21,

33:5, 33:18, 34:5

students [7] - 20:25,

22:4, 25:19, 27:16,

27:23, 29:13, 33:15

stuff [1] - 15:21

submit [2] - 7:9, 11:23

submitted [6] - 9:1,

9:3, 9:15, 9:21,

11:22, 15:23

subscribe [1] - 36:8

substantive [1] -

15:13

sufficient [5] - 3:12,

3:13, 3:23, 4:1, 14:8

sufficiently [1] - 3:14

suggest [2] - 12:16,

20:12

suggested [2] - 6:11,

12:9

suggestion [1] - 16:21

supervisory [1] -

22:23

supplied [1] - 6:25

supported [6] - 3:16,

4:5, 7:15, 17:12,

21:13, 22:2

supporting [1] - 25:11

supposed [1] - 8:19

Sweetser [4] - 20:22,

23:18, 24:1, 27:7

T's [1] - 17:8

tagged [1] - 19:11

Tammy [2] - 36:3,

36:11

tax [11] - 24:20, 25:1,

26:17, 26:19, 27:1,

27:6, 27:7, 27:11,

27:14, 27:19, 27:22

Ted [4] - 5:5, 28:15,

34:11, 35:1

tenant [2] - 32:9, 34:9

terms [3] - 5:18,

32:14, 33:17

testimony [7] - 21:14,

22:1, 22:2, 22:3,

22:9, 22:11, 22:19

THE [1] - 1:17

themselves [1] - 7:6

Theodore [1] - 1:18

therefor [1] - 6:23

thin [1] - 12:11

thinking [1] - 15:18

three [1] - 15:19

three-page [1] - 15:19

threshold [1] - 33:20

Title [2] - 6:14, 25:24

today [4] - 6:5, 15:20,

15:22, 34:22

TOWN [1] - 1:1

Town [7] - 1:20, 2:3,

5:15, 9:9, 23:3,

28:22, 29:8

Town's [5] - 3:10,

3:22, 9:12, 11:3,

23:24

TRANSCRIPT [1] - 3:1

transcription [1] -

36:5

treatment [2] - 26:3,

26:6

tried [3] - 17:18,

23:22, 26:21

trouble [1] - 35:6

troubled [2] - 34:9,

34:13

troubles [1] - 34:3

turn [1] - 4:23

TV [1] - 33:3

two [5] - 7:25, 10:21,

23:22, 28:2, 28:12

underlying [1] - 13:23

understood [1] - 23:1

unless [2] - 24:16,

29:4

up [5] - 3:6, 3:8, 3:19,

3:21, 4:9

uses [2] - 24:1, 24:3

vague [1] - 34:9

version [1] - 10:19

view [1] - 12:10

vote [3] - 8:4, 28:19,

30:11

voted [4] - 21:22,

24:14, 28:2, 28:12

waiting [1] - 12:1

Don Thompson & Associates
(207) 394-3900

5

watch [1] - 33:3

ways [1] - 3:24

welcome [1] - 3:3

whatsoever [1] -

25:22

WHEREOF [1] - 36:8

whole [2] - 22:14, 24:6

wide [1] - 17:14

William [1] - 5:12

willing [1] - 27:10

WITNESS [1] - 36:8

witness [1] - 21:8

witnesses [1] - 14:17

works [1] - 22:7

world [1] - 9:25

wrapped [1] - 34:14

write [1] - 3:16

writing [1] - 15:4

written [3] - 3:15,

3:25, 16:8

years [1] - 29:13

young [2] - 32:23,

33:23

yourself [1] - 10:2

yourselves [1] - 4:4














































